

CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS

of the

PRINCE RUPERT DISTRICT TEACHERS' UNION

Updated to April 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

By-law

- 1. Membership
- 2. Governance of the PRDTU
- 3. Meeting
- 4. Elections
- 5. Duties of the Officers
- 6. Committees
- 7. Fees and Levies
- 8. Voting
- 9. Quorum
- 10. Audit
- 11. Inspection of Books & Records
- 12. Amendment, Rescindment or Adoption of By-laws or articles of the Constitution
- 13. Policies

CONSTITUTION OF THE PRINCE RUPERT DISTRICT TEACHERS' UNION

(A society registered in accordance with the Societies Act of the Province of British Columbia)

Clause 1. NAME

The name of this Society shall be the Prince Rupert District Teachers' Union and it shall be a local association of the British Columbia Teachers' Union and it shall be a local association of the British Columbia Teachers' Federation. 3.1

Clause 2. PURPOSES OF THE SOCIETY

The purposes of this Society shall be:

- 1) To promote the cause of education and public schooling in School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
- 2) To raise the status and promote the welfare of the teaching profession in School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)
- 3) To encourage and facilitate the professional growth of its membership
- 4) To represent its members and to regulate relations with their employer through:
 - a) Collective bargaining of terms and condition of employment
 - b) Enforcement of the current collective agreement

Clause 3. BASE OF OPERATIONS

The business of the Society shall be carried on chiefly in the School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert)

Membership

1.1 Active Members

All persons employed as teachers by the Board of School Trustees, School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) who are required by collective agreement to be members of the British Columbia Teachers' Federation (hereinafter call the BCTF) shall be active Members of the Prince Rupert District Teachers' Union (hereinafter call the PRDTU)

- 1.2 Voluntary Active Members Any persons other than those referred to in By-Law 1.1 who are active members of the BCTF may be active members of the PRDTU.
- 1.3 Associate Members Any person who holds associate membership in the BCTF may become an associate member of the PRDTU.

1.4 Honorary Members

Any persons may be elected at any general meeting of the PRDTU as an Honorary member provided that such election is not contrary to the Constitution and By-laws of the BCTF and/or the PRDTU.

1.5 Honorary Life Members Any person residing in School District No. 52 (Prince Rupert) may be elected as an Honorary Life Member of the PRDTU by resolution of a general meeting of the PRDTU.

Governance of the PRDTU

The Governing Body of the PRDTU shall be the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee shall consist of:

- 2.1 the President
- 2.2 the Vice-President
- 2.2.1 the Immediate Past-President
- 2.2.2 the Local Representative to the BCTF, or alternate
- 2.2.3 the Secretary
- 2.2.4 the Treasurer
- 2.2.5 the Chairperson of the Collective Bargaining Committee
- 2.2.6 the Labour Liaison Representative
- 2.2.7 the Chairperson of the Social Justice Committee
- 2.2.8 the Chairperson of the Professional Development Committee

2.2.9 a Staff Representative representing Hartley Bay Elementary – Jr. Secondary.

2.2.10 a Staff Representative representing teachers appointed to District Staff

2.2.11 a Staff Representative representing teachers appointed to the Aboriginal Education Department

2.2.12 a Staff Representative representing each of the teaching staffs of the public schools located in the City of Prince Rupert and the Village of Port Edward.

2.2.13 a TTOC (teacher teaching on call) Representative representing all TTOC teaching staff in the District.

2.2.14 a French as First or Working Language Representative representing all of the FFWL teaching staff in the District.

(Amended May 2018)

2.2.15 an Aboriginal Education Representative

2.2.16 a Local Election Contact (LEC) (Added May 2018)

2.3 The Table Officers of the P.R.D.T.U. shall be:

2.3.1 the President

2.3.2 the Vice-President

2.3.3 the Local Representative

2.3.4 the Chairperson of the Collective Bargaining Committee

2.3.5 the Chairperson of the Professional Development Committee

2.4 The Table Officers shall act as the Governing Body of the P.R.D.T.U. when the need for immediate action is required and, due to time and quorum limitations, the Executive Committee cannot convene.

2.5 A quorum of the Executive Committee shall be fifty per cent (50%) of its total membership.

2.6 Members of the Executive Committee who are absent from three consecutive Executive and/or General Meetings without providing the President with an acceptable reason and without providing an alternate shall be excused from office and their position declared vacant.

2.7 The Executive Committee shall be empowered to create temporary committees from time to time. The terms of reference for such committees shall be stated in writing and all findings and/or recommendations of such committees shall be reported to the Executive Committee.

2.8 The President of the PRDTU or, in his or her absence, the Vice-President shall be the Presiding Officer at all the Executive Meetings, at all meetings of the Table Officers, and at all General Meetings of the PRDTU.

2.9 The Executive Committee shall have the jurisdiction to consider a complaint that a member of the union has breached the Code of ethics and acted in a manner harmful and prejudicial to the interests of the local union by crossing a picket line established by the PRDTU in respect of the members' employer and act accordingly.

Meetings

3.1 General Meetings of the PRDTU shall be held in September, January, March and May of each school year and from time to time as need arises.

Amended May 14th, 2011.

3.2 General Meetings other than those mandated by By-Law 3 may be called by request of the President, by resolution of the Executive Committee or by presentation to the President of a request in writing for a general Meeting signed by at least ten per cent (10%) of the Active Members of the PRDTU.

3.3 The General Meeting to be held in May as described in By-Law 3.1 shall be the Annual General Meeting of the PRDTU.

3.4 The Annual General Meeting shall be held for the purposes of receiving reports from Standing Committees, Electing Officers, determining the fee for the following year and any other business as must be properly brought before a general meeting of the PRDTU.

3.5 Fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting Notice of date, time, and place of the meeting shall be received in each school and to by district staff. *(Amended May 2018)*

3.6 At the Annual General Meeting the following shall be provided to the membership in attendance.

3.6.1 Reports including any recommendation or findings from all Standing Committees

3.6.2 Recommendations from the Executive Committee

3.6.3 A proposed budget for the PRDTU for the coming year including notice of any fees

3.6.4 A list of nominees for the Executive office from the nominating committee of the Executive committee and

(Amended/Added May 2018)

3.7 Notice of any general meeting other than the Annual General Meeting of Emergency General Meeting shall be received in writing at each school and by District Staff at least seven (7) working days prior to the date of said meeting. With the exception of dinner meetings and other special circumstances, general meetings should be held at "in town" schools, on a rotating basis.

3.7 Emergency General Meetings may be called at the discretion of the President, by resolution of the Executive Committee or by written request to the President, signed by at least ten per cent (10%) of the Active Members of the PRDTU.

3.8 Notice for Emergency General Meetings shall be given verbally by the President to Staff Representatives at least one (1) day prior to the time of the meeting.

3.9 Meetings of the Executive Committee shall be called by the President or by a written call circulated to its members by at least fifty per cent (50%) of the Executive Committee members. Members of the Executive Committee shall receive verbal notice or written notice of any meeting of the Executive Committee at least one (1) day prior to the time of the meeting. 3.10 All meetings of Standing or Temporary Committees shall be called in accordance with the provisions contained in By-Law 3.9.

3.11 All legally constituted meetings of the PRDTU shall be open to all members of the PRDTU and to guests admitted by resolution of the those entitled to vote at a meeting.

3.12 All members shall be conducted according to Robert's Rules of Order where those guidelines are not in conflict with the By-Laws or Procedures of the BCTF or the PRDTU.

Elections

4.1 Positions of the Executive Committee shall be filled by election except the Immediate Past-President.

4.2 Active members only shall be eligible to hold office.

4.3 All positions of the Executive Committee shall be filled at the Annual General Meeting.

4.4 All members of the Executive Committee shall take office on the July 1st following election.

4.5 The amount of time and order in which candidates may address the meeting shall be determined by the meeting.

4.6 Whenever a vacancy shall occur in the Executive Committee by death, resignation, or by removal from office, the vacancy shall be filled temporarily by the Executive Committee. Elections to fill vacancies shall occur at the General Meeting following the general meeting when notice of vacancy is given.

4.7 Elections of delegates to the BCTF Annual General Meeting shall occur at the general meeting January.

4.8 Election of the members of the Collective Bargaining Committee shall occur at the General Meeting in September.

4.9 A Staff Representative shall be elected from each school staff and from the District Staff. These elections shall occur in September of each school year and from time to time as the need arises.

4.10 A Staff Representative to serve on the PRDTU Executive Committee representing the Hartley Bay Elementary-Junior Secondary School shall be elected in September of each year by the combined staffs of these schools.

(Amended May 2018)

4.11 Candidates for office in the PRDTU may be nominated in the following manner:

- a) except for the office of President, from floor of any general meeting; or
- b) by a nominating committee struck by the Executive Committee.
- c) nominations for PRDTU President must be closed 10 days prior to the May general meeting date. Written position statement to be distributed one week before election meeting date.
- 4.12 A candidate shall be declared elected when either he or she:
 - a) is unopposed; or
 - b) received a simple majority of valid ballots cast.

4.13 Where more than two candidates stand for election to the same office the following elimination procedure shall occur:

- a) if after the first ballot none of the candidates receive a simple majority of the votes cast the candidate receiving the fewest number of votes cast shall be eliminated from the slate of candidates and thereafter.
- b) the same procedure shall be repeated until only two candidates remain on the slate, or until one of them receives a simple majority, whichever occurs first.
- c) Unless the meeting decides otherwise.

4.14 For the Annual General Meeting, the village school staff may hold a secret ballot for the position of President prior to the election meeting date. These ballots would be put into a sealed envelope and sent to the President by each village school staff representative bore the election meeting date.

(Changes November 2008)

4.15 Notwithstanding By-Law 4.13, PRDTU delegates to the Annual General Meeting of the BCTF shall be chosen in the following manner:

- a) the President will be appointed as the first BCTF AGM delegate
- b) the balance of the delegates will be elected by a secret ballot where those nominees receiving the greatest plurality of votes shall be elected. If two or more nominees receive the same vote tallies for the last available delegate's position, run-off ballot shall determine the outcome. The nominee not elected but receiving the next highest number of votes shall be considered elected as the PRDTU alternate delegate.

Duties of Officers

5.1 The President

The President shall be the presiding officer of the PRDTU, the Chairperson of the Executive Committee and a member, Ex Officio, of all committees. That person shall have general supervision of all matters and affairs of the PRDTU. The President shall be the primary spokesperson for the PRDTU to the media. The President will ensure the publication, maintenance, distribution and adherence of and to the policies of the PRDTU.

5.2 The Vice-President

The Vice-President shall perform the duties of the President in the latter's absence, and other duties assigned from time to time by resolution of the Executive Committee.

5.3 The Secretary

The Secretary shall keep accurate minutes of all meetings of the PRDTU and of the Executive Committee.

5.4 the Treasurer shall:

- 5.4.1 Receive, disburse and accurately account for all monies of the PRDTU, and
- 5.4.2 Deposit all monies received at a chartered bank or credit union to the credit of the PRDTU and shall draw on those funds by cheque from time to time as instructed by the President, and
- 5.4.3 Prepare an annual budget for the PRDTU in consultation with the Executive Committee

5.4.4 Be the Chief signing officer. The President and/or one other Table Officer will also have signing authority. Two signatures are required on all cheques, or credit card expenses.

(Amended May 2018)

5.5 The Immediate Past President

The Immediate Past President shall act as the Sargent-at-Arms at all General Meetings and other duties as assigned from time to time by resolution of the Executive Committee.

5.6 Staff Representatives

Each Staff Representative shall represent their respective constituencies to the Executive Committee and shall report back to their constituents the business of the Executive Committee.

5.7 Committee Chairperson

Chairperson of any Standing Committee or temporary Committee of the PRDTU shall act as presiding officer of that committee and shall ensure that regular reports of the business of their committee are made *to the* Executive Committee.

5.8 The Labour Liaison Representative shall:

- 5.8.1 maintain an on-going liaison with representatives of all other labour groups in Prince Rupert.
- 5.8.2 attend and act as a spokesperson of the PRDTU at all meetings of the Prince Rupert Labour Council.
- 5.8.3 report to the PRDTU all matters arising out of meetings with labour organizations in Prince Rupert.

5.9 The Local Representative to the BCTF

The local representative shall represent the PRDTU at Representative Assemblies of the BCTF, and the BCTF AGM and shall report back to the PRDTU Executive and general membership the business of the BCTF. If the local representative is unable to attend an RA, the alternate LR will attend in his or her place.

(Added November 2008)

5.10 The Local Election Contact

The Vice-President shall co-ordinate political action/communication during School Board election.

(Added May 2018)

Committees

6.1 From time to time committees may be formed by resolution of the Executive Committee and/or a General Meeting.

6.2 Permanent Standing Committees of the PRDTU shall be:6.2.1 the Collective Bargaining Committee6.2.2 the Social Justice Committee6.2.3 the Professional Development Committee.

6.3 Members of the above standing committees shall be elected or appointed by each staff, and by the District Staff with the exception of the Collective Bargaining Committee.

6.4 Members of the Collective Bargaining Committee shall be elected at a General Meeting in September of each year, with the exception of the Professional Development, Social Justice, the TTOC Representative, the Aboriginal Education Representative, and the Local Representative shall automatically be members. Elected membership on the Collective Bargaining Committee shall be as follows:

1 representative of secondary teachers

1 representative of middle school teachers

1 representative of elementary teachers

1 representative of all teachers

1 representative of the Village School

(Amended May 14th, 2011)

6.5 Chairpersons of Permanent Standing Committees shall be elected to that office in accordance with By-Law 4 of the PRDTU.

Fee and Levies

7.1 The PRDTU annual fee for Active Members shall be set by resolution of the Annual General Meeting and shall be payable in the same manner as the annual fee of the BCTF. Any active member who fails to pay his or her fee shall be held not to be in good standing until such fee is paid.

7.2 The fee for Voluntary Active and Associate members shall be set by resolution of the Executive Committee.

7.3 For expenses in connection with the obtaining of objectives of the PRDTU any General Meeting may make a levy upon the Active Membership of the PRDTU; any such levy shall be paid by each Active Member on or before a date to be determined by that General Meeting or, failing such determination, by resolution of the Executive Committee and any member who fails to comply with this requirement shall not be in good standing until such levy is paid.

7.4 The annual fee and any levy of the PRDTU shall be debts due to the PRDTU and may be collected with costs of suit in the name of the PRDTU in any court appropriate jurisdiction.

7.5 Any levy made other than at the Annual General Meeting of the PRDTU shall be done with at least thirty (30) days notice of motion to the general membership of the PRDTU.

Voting

8.1 Voting at all meetings of the PRDTU shall be limited to Active Members and Voluntary Active Members in good standing.

8.2 Voting at all meetings shall be by how of hands except when a ballot is demanded by one-third (1/3) of the voting members present. Notwithstanding this, voting on ratification of a collective agreement and the election of officers shall be by secret ballot.

8.3 Before the March General Meeting, at which "Reports and Resolutions" comprising the agenda of the BCTF Annual General Meeting are debated, the village school representative will ensure that discussion and votes on each issue are held and those results forwarded to the PRDTU President before the meeting date.

Quorum

At any general meeting of the PRDTU a quorum shall exist when there are ten per cent (10%) of the Active Members present.

Audit

The accounts of the PRDTU shall be audited as prescribed by the Industrial Relations Act. The Auditor(s) shall not be a member of the Executive Committee.

Inspection of Books and Records

Any member of the PRDTU by given five (5) days notice, shall have the right to inspect the books of account and records of the PRDTU.

Amendment, Rescindment or Adoption of By-Laws or Articles of the Constitution

Amendment, rescindment or adoption of By-laws or Clauses of the Constitutions may be made at any general meeting, provided that notice of such changes was made at the previous general meeting or circulated in writing to the membership at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the meeting. An assenting vote of seventy-five per cent (75%) of the Active Members present at the meeting shall be required for the purposes outlined above.

Policies

13.1 From time to time the PRDTU may adopt statements or policy that will serve as guides to the officers of the PRDTU in the conduct of their duties and/or that will serve as statements of objectives that the membership wish the PRDTU to obtain.

13.2 Policy statements, once duly adopted, shall be official statements of the PRDTU and shall be binding of the officers and members of the PRDTU.

13.3 Policy statements may be adopted, amended or rescinded at any general meeting under the same terms as By-Laws of Clauses of the Constitution except that an assenting vote of sixty-six per cent (66%) is required.

Policies

I- Aboriginal Education

- 1. The PRDTU is committed to the full active participation of Aboriginal teachers in all aspects of PRDTU and School District activities.
- 2. The PRDTU supports Aboriginal teachers being represented on all District Advisory and implementation committees.
- 3. Where no Aboriginal teachers are represented on a District Committee, the Aboriginal Education Representative will act as the liaison with that committee.
- 4. The PRDTU will actively encourage the Board to enlist Aboriginal teachers and students in its committee work.
- 5. The PRDTU supports the principle of affirmative action with respect to the employment of Aboriginal teachers in School District No. 52.
- 6. The PRDTU is committed to the development and implementation of Aboriginal Curriculum.

II- Picket line Penalties

- 1. The Executive Committee shall be delegated the power to conduct hearing and to assess penalties for picket line crossings according to guidelines established by the federation.
- 2. The hearing of allegations of picket line violations may be in person or in writing at the discretion of the Executive Committee and shall be conducted prior to assessment of penalties.
- 3. The standard penalty for crossing a local union picket line shall be a fine equivalent to gross pay received from the employer for days upon which said picket line is crossed. Additional penalties applicable may include warning, reprimand, loss of rights to hold office, loss of specified privileges and appropriate publication.
- 4. Any strike pay which picket line violators would normally have received will be forfeited.
- 5. Members found by the Executive Committee to be in violation of picket lines and penalized therefore may appeal such finding and/or penalty in writing to the chairperson of the judicial Council who hall assign and Appeal Panel. The appeal may be heard orally or in writing at the discretion of the Appeal Panel.

III- The Role and Responsibilities of the Staff Representative

A Staff Representative is responsible for linking staff with the Executive Committee by attending Executive Committee meetings, speaking for the staff at the meetings, and taking information back to the staff.

The three goals of a staff representative are to:

- 1. Assume authority within the school as the prime PRDTU/BCTF representative,
- 2. Be an effective problem solver and source of information,
- 3. Assume an active leadership role on staff.

To meet Goal 1 – A Staff Representative

- 1. Works with other PRDTU committee reps within the school to further the goals of the PRDTU within the school.
- 2. Facilitates discussions of issues of concern to the PRDTU/BCTF at the staff level in order to effectively communicate provincial and district concerns to staffs.
- 3. Encourage attendance of PRDTU members at meetings and social events of the union and
- 4. Encourage TTOC's to become active members of the PRDTU.

To meet Goal 2 – A Staff Representative

- 1. Will attend a Staff Union-Representative Training
- 2. May accept training which provides skills to become a future officer of the Executive Committee.
- 3. Should be familiar with Robert's Rules of Order.

To meet Goal 3 – A Staff Representative

- 1. Will assume a leadership role in initiating and developing collegial decision making practices within the school.
- 2. Acts as an advocate, in conjunction with other PRDTU committee representatives, for staff members in matters of professional concern at the school and District level (through the Executive).

IV – Staff Representative: Policy Statements

a) Staff Representative Training

- New staff representatives shall receive a one day training workshop early in the school year. Any necessary TTOC costs shall be paid by the union.
- 2. The Vice-President of the PRDTU shall have the particular responsibility for ensuring on-going staff representative training.
- b) Staff Representative Handbooks
 - 1. At the beginning of each school year, each staff representative shall be provided with an updated Staff Representative Handbook.
 - 2. It shall be the responsibility of each staff representative to update his/her copy of the handbook as is required during the school year.
 - 3. Each staff representative shall return his/her copy of the handbook to the President at the end of the school year.

V – Bargaining

 Each staff representative shall initiate and chair a one-item staff meeting to determine staff bargaining priorities by January 31st of the year prior to the expiration of the collective agreement as a formal step in the bargaining process. These bargaining priorities shall then be presented to the PRDTU Collective Bargaining Committee at a joint CBC-Staff Rep. Meeting in early February of each year.

Collective Bargaining Committee Policy Statement

- 1.1 The Collective Bargaining Committee has the task of coordinating the collective bargaining effort of the PRDTU and, specifically, to carry out the following functions:
 - i) to determine annually a set of objectives and strategies for collective bargaining;
 - to prepare and, in conjunction with the constituent committees co-ordinate, case preparations for collective bargaining;
 - iii) to exclusively represent the PRDTU at all negotiation sessions with the Board of School Trustees or its agents pertaining to the Collective Agreement;
 - iv) to negotiate a full collective agreement that should include the following components;
 - a) job description and working conditions
 - b) professional rights and responsibilities
 - c) job security and personnel practices
 - d) salaries and allowances
 - e) salary protection; and to select a negotiating team and spokesperson

- 1.2 In carrying out the negotiations with the Board of School Trustees or its agents, the Collective Bargaining Committee will be guided by the following statements:
 - Prior to the negotiations with the Board of School Trustees or its agents, the Collective Bargaining Committee shall present the bargaining objective to the Executive Committee of the PRDTU and to a general meeting;
 - Prior to signifying formal acceptance of a collective agreement to the Board of School Trustees or its agents, the Collective Bargaining Committee shall present any "agreement in Committee" to the Executive Committee and a general meeting for acceptance or rejection;
 - iii) In the event of an impasse in bargaining, the Collective Bargaining Committee may recommend to the PRDTU Executive and a general Meeting strategies for the resolution of the impasse.
 - iv) An on-going effort to upgrade the knowledge and skills of members of the Collective Bargaining Committee shall be undertaken.
- 1.3 that the Collective Bargaining Committee shall monitor the Collective Agreement

VI – Grievance Policy

- 1. The Local Union as Bargaining Agent is the party which must deal with contract violations. Members with possible school-based grievances should immediately inform the staff representative. Members with possible grievances arising at the district level should immediately inform the President.
- 2. The President shall have overall responsibility for the processing of grievances. The President shall keep BCTF staff informed of the state of grievances as necessary, and shall advise BCTF staff in all cases when a formal grievance is filed. The President shall advise BCTF staff whenever it appears likely that board action involving dismissal or long-term suspension may be contemplated.
- 3. Staff representatives shall, where appropriate, provide assistance to teachers concerning grievances at the school level, shall assist the President in processing the grievance, and shall keep the grievor and the staff informed about developments in pursuing a grievance.
- 4. There shall be a grievance committee comprised of the President, the Bargaining Chairperson, and the Vice-President, and another member of the local chosen by the Executive. When dealing with a grievance from a specific school, the staff representative for that school shall participate in the committee. The committee advises the President on the conduct of grievances and makes a recommendation to the Executive regarding referral of a grievance to arbitration. The President, the Vice-President, the Bargaining Chairperson shall constitute the PRDTU Members of the Joint Grievance Committee referred to in Article A8 of the Collective Agreement. The authority to refer a grievance to arbitration shall rest with the Executive, which shall consider any recommendation of the grievance committee and the BCTF Bargaining Division. The Bargaining Division should also be consulted for a

recommendation when the grievance committee recommends that a significant grievance not proceed to the arbitration.

- 5. A member dissatisfied with a decision to not proceed in the member's grievance or with an executive decision to not proceed to arbitration may appeal to the next general meeting of the Union. Where such an appeal is communicated in writing, the President shall take any available steps to preserve time limits on a without prejudice basis, while the appeal to the general meeting is pending.
- 6. Except in extraordinary circumstances and by a 75% contrary vote of those voting at an executive meeting and a negative recommendation from the Bargaining Division, any grievance of a member in respect of termination of employment or suspension of three months or more shall, at the member's request, be referred to arbitration. The member may appeal a negative decision to the next general meeting, which shall decide the matter by majority vote.

November, 1989

7. The appropriate committee to consult with the school district on job descriptions as outlined in Article B1.12 shall be the Grievance Committee.

May, 1999

VII – Governance

- 1. President's Release Time
 - a) The PRDTU should ensure that the President is given adequate release time to carry out effectively the duties and responsibilities of his/her position
 - b) For purposes of definition, adequate release time will be considered at least 40% of a full-time teaching assignment. Amended May, 1991
 - c) The President should inform the PRDTU Executive prior to taking any leave of absence that would take the President away from PRDTU duties.
- 2. Past President

Whenever a President is re-elected to a second term of office, the position of the Past President will become vacant.

3. AGM Delegates

To be elected as an AGM Delegate, a candidate must receive 50% plus one of the valid ballots cast.

VIII – Bursaries

The PRDTU annually provides two bursaries; namely:

To Charles Hays Secondary School

- 1) \$1000.00 the Prince Rupert District Teachers' Union Bursary (teacher training)
- 2) \$1000.00 the Prince Rupert District Teachers' Union Bursary (General Studies)

The following are the criteria under which these bursaries may be granted:

- 1) Candidates must be graduates of CHSS.
- 2) Candidates must be proceeding to post-secondary studies in the eligible areas.
- 3) Candidates must have exhibited good citizenship within the School and community.
- 4) Economic need will be considered if all other factors deemed equal.
- 5) Monies will be made available for up to twenty-four months from the time they were awarded. Half of the monies being paid after candidates have provided proof of enrollment in the school, and the second half of the monies being paid after candidates have provided proof of enrolment for a second semester.

Amended May, 14th, 2011 Amended April 30th, 2019

IX – Policy Regarding Awards to Members' Children

That the PRDTU may provide an award of up to \$300 per eligible applicant in any one year for post secondary education. The following are the criteria upon which this award may be granted:

- 1. The recipient must be a child of a PRDTU Local #52 member.
- 2. Limited to two awards per applicant.

First passed June 11, 1988 Amended November 23rd, 1990 Amended May 15, 1993 Amended May 24th, 2008 Amended April 30th, 2019

X – Miscellaneous

1. The social convener shall be responsible for arranging dinner meetings and social events for the PRDTU and shall be the officer responsible for carrying out of social courtesies in the cases of member disability, serious illness or bereavement. The Social Convener shall also be responsible for assuring that a child care program for the children members wishing to attend general meetings is arranged. The social convener is not an Executive Officer. The social convener is elected at the general meeting. *November 1989*

2. Treasurer

Any expenditure exceeding 10% of a committee's projected budget shall be considered by the Executive Committee.

January 1991

- 3. Surplus
 - 1) that the accumulated surplus be maintained at \$50 000
 - 2) that the accumulated surplus be drawn upon use in:
 - a) PRDTU strike or lockout situation

b) Under special circumstances with the approval of the general membership

added March 23, 1991 updated April 30, 2019